
 

 
 

Dear Councillor,  
 
CENTRAL LANCASHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK JOINT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 8TH NOVEMBER 2011 
 
The next meeting of the Central Lancashire Local Development Framework Joint Advisory 
Committee to be held at Preston City Council Tuesday, 8th November 2011 at 5.30 pm.  Entrance 
to the Town Hall during the evening can be gained from the doors on St Thomas’s Road, opposite 
the Police Station.   
 
The agenda and accompanying reports for consideration at the meeting are enclosed.  
 
The agenda papers are being sent to both appointed and substitute Members. Any appointed 
Member who cannot attend on Tuesday, 8th November, 2011 is asked to first contact their 
substitute to see if he or she can attend instead. Then please contact Julie Grundy on 01772 
906112 or via email (j.grundy@preston.gov.uk) to give apologies and indicate whether the 
substitute will be attending. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gary Hall  
Chief Executive of Chorley Council  
 
Cathryn Filbin  
Democratic and Member Services Officer  
E-mail: cathryn.filbin@chorley.gov.uk 
Tel: (01257) 515123 
Fax: (01257) 515150 
 
Distribution 
 
All members of the Central Lancashire Local Development Framework Joint Advisory Committee 
 
Councillors 
Councillors Alan Cullens (Chorley Council), Harold Heaton (Chorley Council), Roy Lees (Chorley 
Council), Neil Cartwright (Preston City Council), Councillor Bill Shannon (Preston City Council), 
Councillor John Swindells (Preston City Council), Councillor Joseph Hughes MBE (South Ribble 
Borough Council), Jon Hesketh (South Ribble Borough Council), Barrie Yates (South Ribble 
Borough Council) and County Councillor Michael Green (Lancashire County Council).  
 
 



Substitute Councillors:  
Peter Goldsworthy (Chorley Council), Geoffrey Russell (Chorley Council), Dennis Edgerley 
(Chorley Council), Carl Crompton (Preston City Council), Councillor Ken Hudson (Preston 
Council), Danny Gallagher (Preston City Council), Councillor Margaret Smith (South Ribble 
Borough Council), Peter Stettner (South Ribble Borough Council) and 
County Councillor Mark Perks (Lancashire County Council) 
 
Officers: 
Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of Partnerships, Planning and Policy), Jennifer Moore (Head of 
Planning), Chris Moister (Head of Governance), Chris Hayward (Assistant Director (Chief Planning 
Officer), Preston City Council), Nuttall (Chief Executive, South Ribble Borough Council), 
John Dalton (Director of Planning and Housing, South Ribble Borough Council), Steve Browne 
(Director of Strategy and Policy, Lancashire County Council), Julian Jackson (Central Lancashire 
LDF Team Co-ordinator) and Cathryn Filbin (Democratic and Member Services Officer).  



 
AGENDA 

 
1. Appointment of Chair for the Meeting   
 
2. Welcome by Chair and Introductions   
 
3. Apologies for absence   
 
4. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on 1 September 2011 (enclosed). 

 
5. Core Strategy Update  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 Report of the LDF Officer Team (enclosed). 

 
6. Community Infrastructure Levy and Infrastructure Planning Update  (Pages 9 - 16) 
 
 Report of the LDF Officer Team (enclosed). 

 
7. Document Preparation - Revised Timescales  (Pages 17 - 18) 
 
 The revised timescales table is enclosed. 

 
8. Progress with Site Allocations PDP's   
 
 A verbal update will be given at the meeting. 

 
9. Dates of Future Meetings   
 
 To note that next meeting of the Joint Advisory Committee is to be held at 5.30pm on 30 

January 2012 at South Ribble Borough Council.  
 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL LANCASHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
Thursday, 1 September 2011 

Central Lancashire Local Development Framework  
Joint Advisory Committee 

 
Thursday, 1 September 2011 

 
Present:  
Councillors Alan Cullens (Chair), Harold Heaton and Roy Lees (Chorley Borough Council) 
Councillors Neil Cartwright, Bill Shannon and John Swindells (Preston City Council) 
Councillors Cliff Hughes MBE, Jon Hesketh, Barrie Yates (South Ribble Borough Council) 
 
Officers in attendance:  
Jennifer Moore (Head of Planning) and Peter McAnespie (Policy & Design Team Leader) 
(Chorley Borough Council) 
Chris Hayward (Assistant Director - Chief Planning Officer) and Mike Molyneaux (Planning 
Policy Manager) (Preston City Council) 
Mike Eastham (Team Leader – Forward Planning) and Helen Hockenhull (Planning 
Manager) (South Ribble Borough Council) 
Julian Jackson (Central Lancashire LDF Team Co-ordinator), David Porter (Central 
Lancashire LDF Team) 
Marcus Hudson (Head of Planning) and Dave Colbert (Principal Engineer Transport 
Planning) (Lancashire County Council) 
 

 
11.LDFJAC.09 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE MEETING  

 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Alan Cullens of Chorley Council be appointed as 
Chair for this meeting. 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.10 WELCOME BY CHAIR AND INTRODUCTIONS  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Central Lancashire Local 
Development Framework Joint Advisory Committee. 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of 
Partnerships, Planning and Policy for Chorley Borough Council), John Dalton 
(Director of Planning and Housing for South Ribble Borough Council) and Steve 
Browne (Director of Strategy and Policy for Lancashire County Council). 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.12 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the last meeting of the Central Lancashire 
Local Development Framework Joint Advisory Committee held on 9 June 2011 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.13 CENTRAL LANCASHIRE CORE STRATEGY - OUTCOMES OF EXAMINATION 
HEARINGS  
 
The Central Lancashire LDF Team presented a report which summarised the 
main issues and outcomes of the examination hearing sessions that had been 
held so far.  Matters which led to most debate and consideration were related to 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 1



CENTRAL LANCASHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
Thursday, 1 September 2011 

housing requirements, employment land, sustainable resources and the flexibility 
of the strategy. 
 
RESOLVED - That the report be noted. 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.14 PROGRESSING THE CENTRAL LANCASHIRE CORE STRATEGY  
 
The Central Lancashire LDF Team produced a report which informed Members 
on the progress of the Core Strategy examination, particularly concerning the 
housing delivery policy (Policy 4). 
 
The Inspector at the examination made an announcement and had written to 
council officers of his concerns centred on the subject of housing delivery.  The 
Inspector’s correspondence indicated that the Core Strategy was likely to be 
found unsound as submitted and had asked the councils to take steps to remedy 
the situation so that the Core Strategy may be found sound and be adopted as 
part of the development plan.  One of the consequences of the Inspector's 
intervention was that the adoption of the Core Strategy would be delayed as 
further consultation and subsequent examination hearing time would be 
required. 
 
Councillor Hughes asked that recommendation ‘2’ be amended to include the 
words ‘to consider’.  Councillor Swindells asked for a further amendment to 
recommendation ‘2’, to substitute the words ‘Higher Bartle’ with ‘North West 
Preston’.     
 
RESOLVED -  

1. To accept the draft recommendations contained in the Inspector's 
letters, concerning housing requirements, in order that the Central 
Lancashire Core Strategy may be found sound and proceed to 
adoption. 

2. Accept the need to consider additional strategic sites or locations of 
land for housing, and to direct the Inspector towards selecting those 
sites which relate best to the existing pattern of development, including 
the phased and managed release of land at North West Preston and 
Pickering's Farm. 

3. Endorse the redrafting of relevant sections of the Core Strategy in 
accordance with the Inspector's recommendations, and to bring the 
new wording to the Full Councils for approval, along with a revised 
timetable towards adoption. 

4. Note that the adoption of the Core Strategy is most likely to be 
postponed until early 2012. 

 
 

11.LDFJAC.15 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY - PREPARING CHARGING 
SCHEDULES  
 
The Central Lancashire LDF Team presented a report which updated Members of 
work on preparing the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedules 
and their likely content. 
 
As separate CIL Charging Authorities, the three district Councils would be 
required to approve their own individual Charging Schedule.  However, to ensure 
the three districts adopted Charging Schedules that would be complementary to 
each other, it was proposed that these should be prepared jointly and consultants 
had been appointed to assist in the process. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 2



CENTRAL LANCASHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
Thursday, 1 September 2011 

 
An associated matter to consider was how spending priorities for collected CIL 
monies should be set and revised over time given the integrated nature of 
infrastructure needs across Central Lancashire. In this respect Members 
recognised that the Joint Advisory Committee could have a role. . 
 
RESOLVED – To support the proposed role of the Joint Advisory Committee in 
acting to steer the establishment and on-going review of cross boundary 
infrastructure funding priorities. 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.16 LOCAL PLANNING REGULATIONS: CONSULTATION  
 
The Central Lancashire LDF Team introduced a report which advised Members 
that the Government had begun a consultation on proposed new regulations 
governing the process by which local councils prepare their development plan and 
associated documents. 
 
Further clarity was required in the areas of the proposed transition from the suite 
of documents contained in the Local Development Framework to the production of 
a single local plan, the duty to cooperate regarding utility companies, the role of 
the examining Inspector’s report recommendations and the National Planning 
Policy Framework conformity procedure.  More importantly authorities currently 
preparing Core Strategies, Site Allocations documents and supplementary 
planning documents needed reassurance that their current work programmes 
would not be undermined by the proposed changes.  
 
The district Councils had until the 7 October 2011 to submit any representation to 
the Government, after which the Government would consider all responses 
received with the aim to publish its reply to the consultation exercise by 1 
November 2011. 
 
RESOLVED -  

1. That the report be noted. 
2. To support responses to the Government on the matter of greater 

clarity for the continued production and adoption of Core Strategy, Site 
Allocations DPDs and other related documents. 

 
 

11.LDFJAC.17 DRAFT NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK: CONSULTATION  
 
The Central Lancashire LDF Team presented a report which set out key matters 
put forward in the draft National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), the 
implications that these may have for the Central Lancashire authorities, and the 
possible grounds for making representations. 
 
The report drew out the main issues where responses to the draft document 
should be made and particularly where additional clarification was required 
regarding the possible  affect on the adoption of the Core Strategy. 
 
The Government invited views on the content and format of the new framework 
which are to be received by 17 October 2011.  It was important for the three 
Councils to respond consistently on those matters that affected all three 
authorities, and the Central Lancashire LDF Team would be able to co-ordinate 
responses, however Councils would need to reflect their individual authority’s 
response at a local level. 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 3



CENTRAL LANCASHIRE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK JOINT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
Thursday, 1 September 2011 

RESOLVED –  
1. That the report be noted 
2. District Councils to make their views known to the Government. 

 
 

11.LDFJAC.18 LANCASHIRE LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN - DRAFT IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
2011/2012 - 2013/2014: CONSULTATION  
 
The Central Lancashire LDF Team produced a report which informed Members of 
the content of the draft Implementation Plan which set out the County Council’s 
transport priorities across Lancashire and the capital programme of transport 
improvements.  The Plan also set local programmes for each local authority, 
which focused on the envisaged expenditure of Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
funding.  Each district profile covered key issues/characteristics from a transport 
perspective and a commentary of the proposals.  
 
The LTP Strategy, which was endorsed by Lancashire County Council's full 
Council in May 2011, set out seven priorities as an approach to transport and 
travel.  Three of the seven priorities were identified as the main focus: 

• Supporting economic growth 
• Improving child safety 
• Maintaining existing transport assets 

 
Councillor Swindells welcomed the proposal to improve road safety in principal but 
questioned the effectiveness of the proposed 20 mph restriction in residential 
areas.  In response, the Head of Planning for Lancashire County Council advised 
that drivers needed to be educated and that the success of the scheme would be 
realised in the long term. 
 
Councillor Heaton commented that traffic calming measures on roads had only 
been implemented in the past based on the accident rate of that road, the Head of 
Planning for Lancashire County Council clarified that the proposal did not replace 
the existing road safety programme. 
 
Councillor Cartwright sought clarification on the programming of Broughton By-
pass given its dependence on developer contributions. The Head of Planning at 
Lancashire County Council indicated the timing of the scheme would be kept 
under review.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted that Lancashire County Council will be 
consulting with the district Councils. 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.19 PROGRESS WITH SITE ALLOCATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PLANS  
 
District Councils updated the meeting on the progression of their individual 
Councils site allocations and development management policies plans. 
 
 

11.LDFJAC.20 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The next meeting of the Central Lancashire LDF Joint Advisory Committee would 
be held at Preston City Council, on Tuesday, 8 November 2011 at 5.30pm.  
 
 
Chair 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 4



 

 

 

 
 

Central Lancashire Local Development Framework Report Template 

                                                                                           
Report of Meeting Date 

Joint LDF Officer Team 
Central Lancashire LDF 

Joint Advisory Committee 
8th November 

2011 

 
CORE STRATEGY UPDATE 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1. To brief Members about the responses made to the Inspector's letters, progress with 

consulting on the housing related changes, and about the preparations for the partial 
review of the Core Strategy. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
2. Members are invited to note the progress made with the Core Strategy. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 
3. This report summarises the responses to the Inspector's letters concerning the Core 

Strategy, the further actions that are under way to consult on the agreed revisions, and the 
early preparations for the partial review of the Core Strategy. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
4. To ensure Members are aware and supportive of the progress with the Core Strategy. 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
5. None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
6. At the previous JAC meeting on 1st September 2011, Members received two reports on 

the Core Strategy.  The first dealt with the details of the Inspector's adjournment of the 
examination, focusing in particular on the housing requirements.  The second report 
looked at all the other issues raised at the examination.  The Inspector invited the 
Councils to respond with proposed changes to the Core Strategy and consult on them.  
He also asked the other parties at the examination for their views on his provisional 
findings. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 5



RESPONSES MADE TO THE INSPECTOR'S LETTERS 
 
7. The Inspector's letters, written on 15th July 2011 and 27th July 2011, required the Councils 

to make amendments to Policies 1 and 4, together with the reasoned justification text 
preceding the policies, in order for the Core Strategy to be found sound.  The Councils' "in 
principle" response to the Inspector was sent on 9th September 2011 and is shown in 
Appendix 1.  Members have since received copies of the proposed revised text for the 
housing related changes in the Core Strategy.  The required consultation on the revisions 
is between 1st November and 12th December 2011. 

 
8. The Inspector's letters also invited representations from organisations involved in the 

examination, and 16 letters were received in response.  Of these 12 were responding to 
housing matters, and 10 were in support of more housing development.  Two 
representations were made on behalf of shopping centre operators and two on behalf of 
arts and cultural organisations.  The main issues raised by the representations  concern 
the: 
 

• suitability (or otherwise) of sites for development 
• flexibility of the Core Strategy 
• weight to be attached to the draft National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
• need to identify an additional 20% of deliverable housing sites against the 5 year 

housing land requirements 
• timely release of greenfield/safeguarded sites 
• need to protect open land from development 
• need to review employment land allocations 

 
PREPARATIONS FOR THE PARTIAL REVIEW OF THE CORE STRATEGY 
 
9. Although the key focus is on completing the Core Strategy examination process, the 

Councils remain committed to a partial review of the Core Strategy, which is intended to 
begin once the plan has been adopted.  The purpose of the review is to update the 
housing requirements for the three Central Lancashire authorities, and to thereby revise 
the housing delivery aspects of the Core Strategy.  The first step is to obtain the best 
advice on the methodology for locally derived housing figures.  Once this has been 
clarified, a timetable will be prepared for Members, indicating the key stages in 
researching and consulting on the updated information. 

 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 
    

Report Author Tel Email Doc ID 
David Porter 01772 536775 david.porter2@lancashire.gov.uk JAC Report – Nov 11 Core Strategy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 6



Appendix1  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Inspector Richard E Hollox 
c/o Tony Blackburn 
Programme Officer 
15 Ottawa Close 
Blackburn 
BB2 7EB 
 
9 September 2011 
 
Dear Mr Hollox 
 
CENTRAL LANCASHIRE CORE STRATEGY 
 
I refer to your letters of 15 and 27 July 2011. 
 
The Central Lancashire authorities' Joint Advisory Committee considered the content of your 
letters and the draft recommendations therein at a meeting held on 1 September 2011. The 
Committee resolved to: 
 

(a) Accept the draft recommendations contained in the Inspector's letters, concerning [the 
Regional Spatial Strategy] housing requirements, in order that the Central Lancashire 
Core Strategy may be found sound and proceed to adoption. 

(b) Accept the need to consider additional strategic sites or locations of land for housing, and 
to direct the Inspector towards selecting those sites which relate best to the existing 
pattern of development, including the phased and managed release of land at North West 
Preston and Pickering's Farm. 

(c) Endorse the redrafting of relevant sections of the Core Strategy in accordance with the 
Inspector's recommendations, and to bring the new wording to the Full Councils for 
approval, along with a revised timetable towards adoption. 

(d) Note that the adoption of the Core Strategy is most likely to be postponed until early 2012. 
 

The area referred to as 'North West Preston' in (b) above is a broad sweep of land south of the 
M55 stretching from west of the Cottam area eastwards to the areas known as Bartle (east of 
Sandy Lane, north of Hoyles Lane / Lightfoot Lane, south of the M55), and extending east of the 
A6 to incorporate land north of Eastway / south of the M55. 
 
The detailed changes to be proposed to the Core Strategy will be presented to each Council's 
executive decision making Member bodies for their consideration. It is envisaged that the matters 
will be considered at Council meetings in September/October 2011. Public consultation on these 
changes and the appropriate supporting documents will then follow as soon as possible thereafter. 
 
In respect of the Draft National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) the Leader of Chorley Council 
is in discussions and correspondence with the Planning Minister Greg Clark. The Councils note 
that the Draft NPPF, whilst being a material consideration, it is just that, a draft, subject to 
consultation which could change significantly, particularly in the light of the controversy it has 

 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 7



caused nationally. The Councils will respond in detail to the national consultation invitation by the 
deadline (17 October 2011) set by that process. The Councils' responses will then be submitted as 
an examination document. 
 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
JRJackson 
 
Julian Jackson 
Central Lancashire LDF Coordinator 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 8



 

 

 

 
 

Central Lancashire Local Development Framework Report Template 

                                                                                           
Report of Meeting Date 

Joint LDF Officer Team 
Central Lancashire LDF 

Joint Advisory Committee 8 November 2011 

 
 
IMPLEMENTING THE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING UPDATE 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1. To provide a detailed insight into the practical issues of deciding to implement the 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and how the infrastructure planning process can be 
used to inform this.  

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
2. That the report be noted. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 
3. Although CIL is a simple concept, implementing it is quite involved. The District Councils as 

the Charging Authorities have the overall control and final say on how spending priorities 
are set and how the bulk of collected monies are actually spent. The exception to this is the 
'meaningful proportion' to be spent in local neighbourhoods which is the subject of a 
current national consultation. The actual delivery of new infrastructure will often rest with 
other agencies but their role will be directed through the infrastructure priorities set by each 
District Council. Decisions about spending priorities and working arrangements with other 
agencies do not have to be taken now. Neither are authorities bound by sticking with the 
draft charge rates consulted on at the first stage. So there is no need to not go ahead with 
the initial consultation using the charge rates recommended by our consultants. 

 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
4. To ensure Members are fully conversant with CIL and the latest work on infrastructure 

planning. 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
5. None 
 
BACKGROUND 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 9



 
 

6. Members have previously received two reports prepared for the Joint Advisory Committee 
meetings in March and September 2011, these respectively introduced CIL and explained 
how Charging Schedules are prepared. Invited Members will also recall that a CIL 
workshop was held on 3 October facilitated by the appointed development viability 
consultants. Fundamentally CIL is a straight forward concept of charging new built 
development contributing towards the cost of strategic infrastructure based on a square 
metre of floorspace basis according to an overall strategic assessment of viability and 
infrastructure needs.. However as with many simple concepts the practicalities of 
implementation are more complex. Appendix 1 reproduces a series of commonly 
occurring questions and answers about CIL although to a limited extent this is still 
evolving as evidenced by the current Government consultation on neighbourhood 
spending and affordable housing – Appendix 2. 
 

7. In terms of infrastructure planning Members are aware that a joint Central Lancashire 
Infrastructure Delivery Schedule has been prepared to inform the preparation of the Core 
Strategy. For CIL purposes the significant aspect is the funding gap at the District 
Charging Schedule level and informing what will be the priorities for infrastructure 
delivery, particularly for spending levy monies. 

 
 
DETAILED ASPECTS OF IMPLEMENTING CIL 
 
8. CIL is an opportunity to capture significantly more in the way of developer financial 

contributions than through Section 106 planning obligations, especially as the use of the 
latter for infrastructure purposes is being progressively restricted by the Government. 
However use of planning obligations will still be appropriate to deliver infrastructure 
provision on the site of the contributing development. Therefore although adopting CIL is 
optional even when it is implemented many developments in the future would be likely to 
be subject to both Section 106 and CIL provisions. 
 

9. In two-tier areas District Councils are the CIL Charging Authorities. With the exception of 
a ‘meaningful proportion’ of CIL monies being spent in local neighbourhoods it is the 
Charging Authorities that decide how the money collected is spent. There is no obligation 
to pool CIL monies with any other authority or infrastructure provider. 
 

10. However District Councils are in practice not going to be responsible for delivering the 
entire infrastructure needed to benefit their area and therefore passing CIL monies to the 
relevant provider agencies is likely to be a common occurrence. Those agencies cannot 
‘demand’ payment, agreement with the Charging Authority would need to be reached as 
to which infrastructure projects are to be CIL funded and to what extent. 
 

11. Similarly some benefits to the local area will arise from infrastructure provided in a 
neighbouring area. But again the extent to which one charging authority may financially 
support an infrastructure project in a neighbouring authority’s area will be at the discretion 
of the donating authority. A consensus would ideally be sought with all the parties 
involved. 
 

12. All decisions on spending CIL monies, whether to support District or sub-regional 
infrastructure, should be based on priorities agreed firstly by the individual Charging 
Authority and then (for sub-regional projects) with neighbouring authorities. Such priorities 
can be reviewed at any time but are likely to be reconsidered at least annually to reflect 
any changing circumstances. 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 10



13. In Central Lancashire the consultants’ research shows CIL monies envisaged to be 
collected will not meet the whole funding gap indentified to date through the infrastructure 
planning. CIL could possibly cover between a third and a half of the overall funding gap. 
Such a level of shortfall is common amongst the first authorities elsewhere in the country 
adopting examiner supported Charging Schedules. The reason a large funding gap is not 
an over-riding concern is that it is generally accepted other funding opportunities will 
come along over the 15 year planning period. Also the economy is at a low ebb at the 
moment, however with any economic upturn in the future development viability can be 
expected to improve and so the ability and opportunity to levy higher CIL rates would arise 
at such a time. It may prove opportune to review the charge rates after 2 to 3 years  
 

14. Notwithstanding a future improvement in the economy it is currently appropriate to review 
in a number of ways the previously produced joint Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS) 
which was prepared to inform the Core Strategy. However for CIL as is necessary to 
demonstrate a funding gap for each Council’s Charging Schedule. A way of achieving this 
is to divide the IDS into District parts. This is only practically possible by using the physical 
location of each infrastructure project although some of these (eg transport schemes) 
cross District boundaries or are presently indeterminate – a residual Central Lancashire 
schedule will need to be retained for such projects. Members will appreciate this split is 
not a perfect solution in establishing who benefits from particular infrastructure projects. 
For example a park and ride scheme will be located in one area but is likely to used by 
residents from a wider area. The infrastructure evidence base for CIL would also benefit 
from a fuller technical report – what can be termed an 'infrastructure delivery plan' 
although this would still only be a background document to the Charging Schedule setting 
and examination process. 
 

15. Infrastructure projects can be prioritised in a number of ways as how essential or 
desirable they are, such as in achieving the objectives of the Core Strategy and/or helping 
to deliver key development sites. Officers are working on such an approach and seeking 
to distinguish between whether projects would be likely to be CIL and/or Section 106 
funded. The outcome of this work will be presented to Members at a later date.  
 

16. CIL monies will initially come in slowly after a Charging Schedule is adopted as new 
development is granted planning permission, as CIL rates applied to it and construction is 
started. At first most new development being built will have been granted planning 
permission before CIL was brought into force locally. However assuming for example all 
new housing is liable to paying CIL then at say a rate of £70 per square metre a typical 90 
square metre house will be charged £6,300 and if between 400 and 500 such dwellings 
are built in a year the annual amount due to be collected will range from £2.52 to £3.15 
million, just from residential development. 
 

17. Setting CIL rates is not a precise science. The Government and examining inspectors 
expect a broad strategic approach to be followed which may render some development 
unviable. Producing preliminary draft charge rates for initial consultation does not 
commit authorities to sticking with those rates at the next, what can be called, 
‘preferred’ draft stage. Also the rates in the Charging Schedule are subject to 
examination by an independent examiner who will consider the representations made by 
third parties. 
 

18. Although there remain uncertainties as to how CIL might evolve nationally in terms of 
such aspects as affordable housing funding and passing monies to local neighbourhoods 
there are no reasons to delay the Charging Schedule preparation process in Central 
Lancashire. The initial evidence has been prepared and although it will be subject to the 
findings of the initial consultation stage, it provides a thorough basis for consultation.  
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 11



19. The consultants have so far found that , although development viability across Central 
Lancashire varies, given the variations in land costs, house values, a single residential 
charge is common to all three charging authorities.  This approach will allow for greater 
flexibility in the use of developer contributions in the slightly higher viability areas, as 
these areas are also the ones most likely to require greater ‘on site S106’ infrastructure.  
Some use based charges related to retail are also proposed. The recommendation for the 
first (preliminary draft) stage that the same rates be consulted on for each District/ 
Charging Authority. It is envisaged that the Charging Schedules will be presented for 
executive approval in each Council in November. 
 

20. Members should appreciate that having the same CIL charge rates across Central 
Lancashire may not be the final outcome of the Charging Schedule preparation process. 
There may well be some scope for each Charging Authority to adopt justifiably different 
rates.  This will be for each Council to decide upon based on their attitude towards 
developer risk, providing the rate does not put the bulk of the development at risk. 
Although it would still be appropriate for rates to be complementary rather than conflicting 
across Central Lancashire. Members are reminded CIL rates cannot be based on policy 
grounds, they can only be justified on development viability evidence.  

 
 

Background Papers 
Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Community Infrastructure 
Levy – Detailed proposals 
and draft regulations for 

reform - DCLG 
October 2011  

Lancastria House, Preston 
Civic Offices, Leyland 

Union Street Offices, Chorley 
County Hall, Preston 

 
Report Author Tel Email Doc ID 
Julian Jackson 01772 536774 Julian.jackson@lancashire.gov.uk JAC Report – Nov 11 CIL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 12



Appendix 1 
 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY – QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 

• Q1. What forms of development does CIL apply to? 
• A1. Most forms of built development over 100 square metres in gross internal floor space 

and all new built dwellings irrespective of size. 
 

• Q2. Are there any exceptions? 
• A2. Yes CIL does not apply to buildings that are not normally used by people – such those 

that just house machinery, for example a pumping station, and relief from CIL applies to:  
o Social housing 
o Development by charities for charitable purposes 

 
• Q3. Is CIL negotiable? 
• A3. Only in highly exceptional circumstances when certain development (typically large 

strategic sites) can be exempt from CIL if it is to provide (through S.106 obligations) on-site 
infrastructure and where an additional CIL charge would render the development unviable 
 

• Q4. Does CIL apply to conversions of existing buildings? 
• A4. Only to any additional ‘external’ floor space over 100 square metres that is created, CIL 

is not chargeable on added floor space within the existing building – such as a mezzanine 
floor 
 

• Q5. On a cleared redevelopment site is the previous floor space deducted from the newly 
built floor space to determine the amount of CIL payable? 

• A5. Only to any extent that the previous floor space was used for at least 6 months in the 
previous 12 months. 
 

• Q6. Unit of charge? 
• A6. Per square metre of additional gross internal floor space. 

 
• Q7. Where there is a County Council and a District Council administering in an area which 

authority can charge CIL? 
• A7. The District Council is the charging authority 

 
• Q8. Who is liable to pay CIL charges? 
• A8. The regulations ensure that the developer or landowner are liable depending on 

circumstances. 
 

• Q9. When is the charge due for payment? 
• A9.  On commencement of the development (and payable within 60 days thereof) 

 
• Q10.  What actions can charging authorities take for non-payment? 
• A10.  A stop notice can be served as well as a summons for payment 

 
• Q11. Can payments be made in instalments? 
• A11.  Yes, if the charging authority has an instalment policy, in such cases the payments 

are due at certain times irrespective of actual progress with the development  
 

• Q12. What actions can charging authorities take for late payments? 
• A12.  A stop notice and a summons for payment 

 
• Q13.  Are there any limitations on what CIL monies can be spent on? 
• A13. Yes only on infrastructure (widely defined) required to support development of the 

area (capital and revenue costs), CIL monies cannot be spent on remedying deficiencies in 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 13



existing infrastructure (unless this would be made worse by new development) or cover 
pre-existing running costs of such 
 

• Q14. Can charging authorities retain any collected CIL monies to cover their CIL set up or 
ongoing collection costs? 

• A14. Yes within limits, these limits are currently being consulted on (see Appendix 2) 
 

• Q15. Can CIL monies be spent outside the charging authority’s administrative area? 
• A15. Yes provided it supports the development of the donating area 

 
• Q16. Can CIL monies be passed to another agency that will provide the infrastructure? 
• A16. Yes but there is no obligation on the Charging Authority to do this 

 
• Q17.  On what basis are CIL charge rates set? 
• A17. The broad economic viability of different types of development in the area or sub-area 

subject to an ‘appropriate balance’ being struck with the costs of meeting the funding gap 
 

• Q18. Can nil/zero CIL rates be set? 
• A18. Yes where that is justifiable in terms of development viability 

 
• Q19. Can a development be subject to both s106 and CIL in terms of infrastructure 

contributions? 
• A19. Yes, but increasingly s106 is being limited by regulations to just contributing to on-site 

infrastructure provision 
 

• Q20. Can CIL obligations be met by payments in kind? 
• A20. Yes, such as a donation of land for an infrastructure project 

 
• Q21. Can a development granted planning permission prior to CIL being introduced be 

required to pay CIL? 
• A21.  No, not unless the permission expires 

 
• Q22. Can CIL rates vary from use to use? 
• A22. Yes based on differences in viability 

 
• Q23. Can CIL rates vary from place to place within a single charging authority area? 
• A23. Yes if there are spatial differences in development viability, but the sub-areas need to 

shown on a map and justifying such precise boundaries can be difficult 
 

• Q24. Do CIL regulations apply in Enterprise Zones? 
• A24. Yes development in Enterprise Zones will be liable to the same CIL rates as 

elsewhere in the District unless the viability of development within the Zones is different 
and as a result different rates are included in the Charging Schedule 
 

• Q25. Are CIL rates subject to automatic annual increases arising from changes in 
construction costs? 

• A25. Yes a nationally recognised construction cost index is used 
 

• Q26. Can CIL rates be reviewed at any time? 
• A26. Yes at any time but a new Charging Schedule will need to be produced and justified 

through the same preparation stages as with the preceding Schedule 
 

• Q27. What controls or incentives are there to ensure that CIL receipts are spent once they 
are collected? 

• A27. Charging Authorities are required to regularly publish updates on expenditure 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 14



Appendix 2 
 

CIL CHANGES CONSULTATION 
 
The Government are consulting on two main measures that would affect the operation of the levy 
locally: 

• What the 'meaningful' proportion of CIL monies collected from development in a 
neighbourhood should be spent in that neighbourhood 

• Whether local authorities should have the choice of funding affordable housing by CIL 
monies as well as through Section106 planning obligations 

The consultation paper also confirms two other operational matters: 
• Charging authorities are to be required to publish information on levy receipts and 

expenditure as soon as reasonably practical 
• Development granted planning permission through Neighbourhood Development Orders 

and Community Right to Build Orders will not be subject to the levy until 2013 
 

'Meaningful' Proportion of CIL Monies to be Spent in the Local Neighbourhood 
 
This is a provision of the Localism Bill. The intention of the provision is to 'give local authorities and 
their communities the means and flexibility to manage the impacts of new development and 
ensure that they share in the benefits of growth'. 
 
The consultation document does not propose a minimum percentage figure for the proportion, the 
Government seeks suggestions on the percentage should be. In parished areas the recipient body 
of the neighbourhood funding will be the parish council. Elsewhere in non-parished areas the 
suggestion is that the local authority should engage with local residents, businesses and other 
interests to determine how local neighbourhood proportion will be spent. 
 
Parish Councils will be able to use the money passed to them for any infrastructure of their choice 
(including contributing to District Council projects) provided that it supports the development of the 
area and can be used to cover the on-going revenue costs of this infrastructure. As with CIL 
monies generally parish councils will not be able to use their proportion to remedy existing 
infrastructure or to help with the running costs of such. Charging authorities are expected to pass 
monies to parish councils promptly and at least after 6 months of being received. Parish Councils 
will be required to report at least annually on their receipts and expenditure. 
 
To avoid there being an embarrassment of riches being due to a parish council from large 
developments in sparsely populated areas a per household cap mechanism is proposed. 
Suggestions are sought as to what that cap level should be, expressed per council tax dwelling. 
No indication of the level is expressed in the consultation document 
 
COMMENTARY - The consultation document gives few clues to what is meant by a 'meaningful' 
proportion of total CIL monies. The provision implies that after the normal process of granting 
planning permission (probably with appropriate conditions, planning obligation and an overall CIL 
contribution) has been completed there will be 'something more to do' locally to make a new 
development acceptable to or in the local community.  
 
Although not required to do so Parish Councils ought to indicate in advance what local 
infrastructure they intend to fund if only to coordinate this with the District Council's intentions. 
Clearly the Government recognises situations may arise where the normal meaningful proportion 
will be too high but choosing a universally applicable level will be difficult to do as local 
neighbourhood infrastructure requirements will vary greatly. 
The main issue in non-parished areas is how to gain a clear understanding of what the local 
neighbourhood comprises and needs given a likely lack of representative bodies.   
 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 15



Funding Affordable Housing through CIL 
 
There are no proposals to change the delivery of on-site affordable housing through Section 106 
planning obligations applied to market housing schemes. However in circumstances when off-site 
of affordable housing provision is appropriate the suggestion is there could be an option of using 
the CIL charge. The consultation paper also proposes the relaxation of the pooling of Section 106 
affordable housing monetary contributions –ie not being limited to 5 developments contributing to 
the pool. It also appears that a local authority could use both mechanisms to fund off-site 
affordable housing. Not surprisingly the consultation paper suggests that local authorities make 
clear their intended delivery means of achieving affordable housing. 
 
COMMENTARY – This is a complicated area. Planning obligations are negotiated, CIL charges 
are fixed. Affordable housing contributions, whether they constitute on-site provision or off-site 
monies, impact on development viability in much the same way as CIL charges. This implies that 
CIL rates would need to vary between sites where on-site affordable housing through s106 is 
intended and where CIL is to be used for affordable housing provision. This may well prove very 
difficult to implement. 
 
Removing the Administrative Cap for Charging Authorities 
 
Currently charging authorities can use a proportion of CIL monies collected to fund the 
administration costs of operating the level. Currently this is capped at 5% of receipts less 
expenses of up to 4% of receipts incurred in collecting the levy. The Government are proposing to 
remove the 5% gap (in recognition of the likely cost of operating CIL at the neighbourhood level, 
on-going reporting etc) but not remove the 4% cap on the collection element. Charging authorities 
will in effect be able to recoup the full cost of all other administrative tasks. 
 
COMMENTARY – This is clearly a helpful move that should more fully cover all the costs of 
operating CIL. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 16



DOCUMENT PREPARATION – REVISED TIMESCALES 

 

CORE STRATEGY  

Consultation on Changes  November – December 2011 
Submit Changes and Representations January 2012 
Resume Examination February  
Inspector’s Report Received March 
Adoption May 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS  

Consultation February – March 2012 
Adoption July 
 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 17



Agenda Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Core Strategy Update
	6 Community Infrastructure Levy and Infrastructure Planning Update
	7 Document Preparation - Revised Timescales

